
Memorandum to the City of Markham Committee of Adjustment 
June 27, 2022 
 
File:    A/065/22 
Address:   25 Victoria Ave    Markham  
Applicant:    Vagn Lauritsen  
Agent:    Gregory Design Group  
Hearing Date: July 6, 2022 
 
The following comments are provided on behalf of the Heritage Team: 
 
The applicant is requesting relief from the following requirements of the Single Family 
Residential (R3) zone under By-law 122-72, as amended, to permit: 
 

1) By-law 122-72, Section 11.2:  

a front yard setback of 5’2” (1.58m) for the front covered porch of existing heritage 

house, whereas the by-law requires a minimum front yard setback of 25ft. 

2) By-law 122-72, Section 11.2:  

a maximum lot coverage of 34.5 percent whereas the by-law permits a maximum 

lot coverage of 33.3 percent  

3) By-law 142-95, Section 2.2 b)(i):  

a rear concrete deck without a cellar below to project 3.66 m from the dwelling, 

whereas a deck over 1 m in height is permitted to project maximum of 3.0m.  

4) Amended By-law 340-83, Section 1(e):  

a window opening at geodetic datum elevation of 174.7m, whereas the by-law 

requires that there be no openings below a geodetic datum elevation of 174.8m; 

 
This variance application has been submitted concurrently with a Site Plan Control 
Application (SPC 22 116892). 
 
BACKGROUND 
Property Description 
The 658.9 m2 (7,092.3 ft2) subject property is located on the south side of Victoria Avenue 
near the intersection of Victoria Lane. The property is located within an established historic 
residential neighbourhood contained within the Unionville Heritage Conservation District 
(See Figure 1-Location Map). The street is comprised almost entirely of historic detached 
dwellings, many of which have been restored and enlarged with modern additions.  
 
There is an existing heritage dwelling on the property, which according to assessment 
records was constructed in 1896 (See Figure 2- Photograph of the Existing Heritage 
Dwelling). No significant mature vegetation is known to existing on the property.  
 
The property is entirely within the TRCA’s Regulated Area due to its close proximity to 
Bruce’s Creek and the Denby Valley. 
 
Proposal 
The applicant is proposing to demolish the existing one storey, historic, rear kitchen 
component of the dwelling in order to construct a new two-storey rear addition and 
detached double car garage. 
 
Zoning Preliminary Review (ZPR) Undertaken  



The applicant submitted an incomplete Zoning Preliminary Review in November 2021, as 
the requested variances were identified as part of the zoning review of the accompanying 
site plan application (SPC 22 116892), after the ZPR was submitted. Therefore, it remains 
the owner’s responsibility to ensure that the application has accurately identified all the 
variances to the Zoning By-law required for the proposed development. If the variance 
requests in this application contain errors, or if the need for additional variances is 
identified during the Building Permit review process, further variance application(s) may 
be required to address the non-compliance. 
 

COMMENTS 
The Planning Act states that four tests must be met in order for a variance to be granted 
by the Committee of Adjustment: 

a) The variance must be minor in nature; 
b) The variance must be desirable, in the opinion of the Committee of Adjustment, for 

the appropriate development or use of land, building or structure; 
c) The general intent and purpose of the Zoning By-law must be maintained; 
d) The general intent and purpose of the Official Plan must be maintained.  

 
Reduced  Front Yard Setback 
The applicant is requesting relief to recognize a minimum existing front yard setback of 5’-
2”, whereas the By-law requires a minimum front yard setback of 25’-0”. Staff advise that 
this is an existing historic site condition common to most of the heritage homes fronting 
Victoria Avenue that contributes to the unique heritage character of the street. Therefore, 
this variance is considered minor in nature and desirable for the appropriate development 
of the land. 
 
Increased Maximum Lot Coverage 
Staff are of the opinion that the requested variance to permit a maximum lot coverage of 
34.5%, whereas the By-law permits a maximum lot coverage of 33.3% is minor in nature 
both numerically and, due to its limited impact from the public realm of Victoria Avenue, 
and is considered to meet the other three tests prescribed by the Act. 
 
Projection of Rear Yard Deck 
Staff are also of the opinion that the requested variance to permit the rear yard concrete 
deck to project 3.66m (12 ft.) whereas the By-law permit a maximum projection of 3.0m 
(9.8 ft.) is minor in nature numerically, and its impact from the public realm is negligible, 
as this feature will not be visible from Victoria Avenue. 
 
Elevation of Window Openings  
The applicant is requesting a variance to permit a window opening to be 10cm (3.9 inches) 
lower than what is permitted by the By-law. The applicant has recently demonstrated that 
basement window openings can be achieved in compliance with the minimum permitted 
elevation of 178.4m, thus potentially eliminating the need for this particular variance. The 
minimum elevation permitted for window openings is intended to protect and minimize 
property damage that might occur during a flood event. This requested variance is 
considered to be minor in nature and meets the other three tests of the Planning Act, 
despite the TRCA indicating some concerns, as identified below. 

 
EXTERNAL AGENCIES 
TRCA Comments  
As mentioned above, the subject property is entirely located within Toronto Region and 
Conservation Authority (TRCA)’s Regulated Area. TRCA provided comments on the 
variance and the accompanying site plan application in a letter to the applicant dated June 



15, 2022. (See Appendix C), recommending that the variance application be deferred 
pending the submission of additional materials and/or revised plans from the applicant. 
 
Despite this, it is the opinion of Planning staff that a deferral is not warranted, given that 
the TRCA has its own separate permitting process that is required under applicable law, 
in order to obtain a building permit from the City. Satisfying the requirements of the TRCA 
is included as condition of approval of the variance application, as well as a condition of 
Site Plan Approval. 
 
The applicant will be required to resolve any outstanding issues with the TRCA, as the 
applicant would not be able to obtain final approval of the variances or a building permit 
without first obtaining a permit from the TRCA. Given that the applicant has also 
demonstrated that the window openings in the basement can be designed to comply with 
the minimum required elevation of 178.4m, this variance to permit a window opening 
below the minimum required elevation may potentially be eliminated altogether.  
 
Metrolinx Requirements 
Metrolinx provided comments on this application requiring the construction of a crash wall 
or, the applicant entering into an Infill Adjacent Development Agreement with Metrolinx, 
should the construction of an appropriate crash wall not be feasible. Metrolinx also will 
require the owner to enter into an Environmental Easement Agreement. Staff have 
included a condition requiring the applicant to satisfy Metrolinx’s requirements prior to the 
issuance of a building permit. 
 

CITY OF MARKHAM 
Urban Design and Engineering 
The City’s Urban Design Section and Engineering Department have provided no 
comments on the variance application. 
 
Heritage Markham 
The Heritage Markham Committee reviewed the requested variances at their meeting of 
June 8, 2022 and had no objection to the approval of the variances from a heritage 
perspective (See Appendix C). 

 
PUBLIC INPUT SUMMARY 
No written submissions were received as of June 28, 2022. It is noted that additional 
information may be received after the writing of the report, and the Secretary-Treasurer 
will provide information on this at the meeting.   
 
CONCLUSION 
Planning Staff have reviewed the application with respect to Section 45(1) of The Planning 
Act, R.S.O. 1990, c. P.13, as amended, and are of the opinion that the variances 
requested meet the four tests of the Planning Act and have no objection. Staff recommend 
that the Committee consider public input in reaching a decision.  
 
The onus is ultimately on the applicant to demonstrate why they should be granted relief 
from the requirements of the zoning by-law, and how they satisfy the tests of the 
Planning Act required for the granting of minor variances. 
 
Please see Appendix “A” for conditions to be attached to any approval of this application. 
 
PREPARED BY: 



__ 
_________________________________ 
Peter Wokral, Senior Heritage Planner 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
REVIEWED BY: 

 
________________________ 
Peter Wokral, “Acting” Manager of Heritage Planning  
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FIGURE 1- LOCATION MAP 
 

 

 
 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 



FIGURE 2- PHOTOGRAPH OF THE EXSTING HERITAGE DWELLING 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 



APPENDIX “A” 
CONDITIONS TO BE ATTACHED TO ANY APPROVAL OF FILE A/065/22 
 

1) The variances apply only to the proposed development as long as it remains; 

 
2) That the variances apply only to the subject development, in substantial conformity 

with the plan(s) attached as ‘Appendix B’ to this Staff Report, and that the Secretary-

Treasurer receive written confirmation from the Director of Planning and Urban 

Design or designate that this condition has been fulfilled to his or her satisfaction; 

 
3) That the owner submit to the Secretary-Treasurer a copy of the Site Plan 

Endorsement memo for the proposed development; 

 
4) That the applicant satisfies the requirements of both the TRCA and Metrolinx, 

financial or otherwise, as indicated in their letter and correspondance attached as 

Appendix C and D to this Staff Report, to the satisfaction of the TRCA and Metrolinx, 

and that the Secretary-Treasurer receive written confirmation that the applicant has 

obtained a permit from the TRCA and has entered into an Infill Adjacent 

Development Agreement and an Environmental Easement Agreement with Metrolinx 

prior to the issuance of a Building Permit. 

 

 

 

 
CONDITIONS PREPARED BY: 
 
 

 
 
___________________________________ 
Peter Wokral, Senior Heritage Planner 
 

 

 
  



APPENDIX B- PROPOSED SITE PLAN AND ELEVATIONS 
 

 
 



 
 
North (Street Facing) Elevation 
 

 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 



 
 

 
 
South (Rear) Elevation 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 



 
 

 
 
APPENDIX C- HERITAGE MARKHAM EXTRACT OF JUNE 8, 2022 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 



 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 



 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 



APPENDIX D- Letter to Planner and Applicant from TRCA dated June 15, 2022

  

 



 
 

 
 

 
 



 
 

 
 
 

 
 



 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 



APPENDIX E- Correspondence received from Metrolinx 
 

 
 
 
 
 


